ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 9, 2003
1:30 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senator Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therriault

Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senator Hollis French

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 97

"An Act relating to public interest litigants and to attorney

fees; and anending Rule 82, Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure.”
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO. 59
"An Act relating to permanent fund dividend program notice
requirenents and to the ineligibility for pernmanent fund
di vidends of certain persons sentenced for driving while under
the influence of an alcoholic beverage, inhalant, or controlled
substance, or for refusal to submt to a chemcal test."

MOVED CSSB 59(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 53

"An Act relating to disposition of a traffic offense involving
the death of a person; providing for the revocation of driving
privileges by a court for a driver convicted of a violation of
traffic laws in connection with a fatal notor vehicle or
comercial notor vehicle accident; anending Rules 43 and 43.1,
Al aska Rules of Adm nistration; and providing for an effective
date.”

MOVED SB 53 QUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 23(JUD)
"An Act relating to court-ordered restitution and conpensation
followng a crimnal conviction."

MOVED CSHB 23(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2003



SENATE BI LL NO. 24
"An Act providing special absentee ballots for voters in renote
areas."

HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 46( STA)
"An Act relating to printing of ballot titles and propositions
on primary election ballots.™

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

SB 59 — See Judiciary mnutes dated 2/19/03 and 4/2/083.

SB 53 - See Transportation mnutes dated 2/18/ 03 and Judiciary
m nut es dated 4/7/03.

HB 23 - See Judiciary mnutes dated 4/7/03.

SB 24 — See State Affairs mnutes dated 3/18/03.

HB 46 - See State Affairs m nutes dated 3/18/083.

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Crystal Moore

Staff to Senat or Cowdery

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 59.

Ms. Tam Cook

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services Division
Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 59.

Ms. Linda Syl vester

Staff to Representative Weyhrauch

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 23 for the sponsor.

Senat or Lincoln

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 24.

Ms. Sarah Boraio

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 9, 2003



Staff to Senator Lincoln

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 24 for the sponsor.

Ms. Virginia Breeze, Legislative Liaison

Di vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

PO Box 110017

Juneau AK 99811-0017

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 24 and conmmented on HB 46.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-20, SIDE A

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:30 p.m Present were Senators
Ellis, French and Chair Seekins. He announced that SB 97 was

being held for nore work.

SB  59- PERVANENT FUND | NELI G BI LI TY FOR DUl

CHAIR SEEKINS announced SB 59, version \H to be up for
consi deration.

M5. CRYSTAL MOORE, staff to Senator Cowdery, said she had
not hing to add and woul d answer questi ons.

SENATOR OGAN arrived and asked if |anguage on page 3, line 21
means the bill is retroactive.

CHAIR SEEKINS replied that it is not retroactive from the
effective date; but further on, if a person is convicted of a
second offense wthin the previous four years, it wuld count
t hen.

M5. TAM COOK, Legislative Legal and Research Division, said that
was correct.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to pass SB 59, [version \H, from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
notes. There was no objection and it was so ordered.

SB_ 53-REVOKE DRIVER' S LI C. FOR FATAL ACCI DENT

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2003



CHAIR SEEKINS announced SB 53, version A to be up for
consi derati on.

SENATOR FRENCH asked Senat or Ogan, sponsor, whether he wanted to
add "serious physical injury" since that is frequently a result
of an autonobile accident of the sort this bill envisions. The
drawback is that the bill would be |less clear-cut, because you
coul d argue about how serious a physical injury really is versus
soneone suffering a fatality.

SENATOR OGAN responded that he had seriously considered that,
but since this bill has taken eight years so far, he would Ilike
to work on that as a separate issue.

SENATOR OGAN noved to pass SB 53, version \A from conmttee
wi th individual recommendations. There were no objections and it
was so ordered.

HB 23- RESTI TUTI ON FOR CRI ME VI CTI M5

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced CSHB 23(JUD), version \U, to be up for
consi derati on.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said with regard to the concern he expressed
at a previous neeting, he understands the rationale between the
two groups and is willing to go forward.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he understands that this would allow non-
profits to be able to collect for volunteer |abor. For profit
corporations are able to seek recovery for labor required to
clean up after a crinme, but a private individual would still not
be able to collect for tine volunteers mght spend cleaning up
after a crine.

M5. LINDA SYLVESTER, staff to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch,
said she woul d answer questions.

SENATOR OGAN asked what they were trying to fix wth this
| egi sl ati on.

MS. SYLVESTER replied that the bill was witten in response to
an incident that happened in Juneau with the Al aska State Folk
Festival when the treasurer enbezzled funds. The case was
prosecuted and the festival board and six volunteers spent over
200 hours providing evidence for the police departnent. During
the restitution hearing the court determned that state |aw

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2003



didn't clearly envision that the efforts of a volunteer board
could be included in the restitution.

SENATOR OGAN asked if the non-profit had recourse for damages in
civil court.

M5. SYLVESTER replied that they would have, but restitution is
in a crimnal proceeding and is an avenue that is available to a
victim so that they can be nade whole in an expedited way
W thout going to civil court.

CHAIR SEEKINS said it <clarifies that these are not actual
damages that have been paid to soneone to perform auditing
services to determ ne the anobunt of the enbezzlenent, but rather
actual hours of time spent by vol unteers.

SENATOR OGAN said he is a little troubled by the direction the
bill is going. He is concerned whether it is an appropriate role
to award what would typically be a civil damage in a crimnal
case.

SENATOR FRENCH said he shares that concern and he also has
issues with how a court would value the services, especially in
the folk festival case where they didn't spend any noney.

So the $5,000 they are getting is what you mght call

unjust enrichnent. | think on bal ance, we should fall
on the side of the non-profit. And, | think on
bal ance, courts will be aware of where you can fairly
assign a dollar value and where they can't. They'll
deny a request in crimnal court still leaving the
victim free to run straight over to civil court and
file a claim | don't think anyone should |look at this

as a free for all for crinme victins to get paid back
because they never will be...

CHAI R SEEKI NS agreed with Senat or French.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said his concern is that they are carving the
non-profits out for this little extra treatnent that is not
avai lable to individual citizens. He then acknow edged that you
have to recogni ze the good that non-profits provide in society.

They're not going to be able to wunfairly enrich
themselves. | think the courts wll step in and
prevent that from happening. It doesn't guarantee them
to be nmde whole, because a lot of tinmes the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2003



i ndi viduals that perpetrate the crinmes don't have the
nmeans. .

M5. SYLVESTER said this is okay because the people in the non-
profits are not getting paid and it's difficult for a group to
cone up with a nonetary award. Al so, nost often these situations
are dealing with enbezzlenent and the way our crimnal justice
system is set up, they are not going to investigate and spend
the tinme and effort reconstructing books that have been
conpletely destroyed or don't exist. It's a simlar situation to
asking a rape victimto go out and hunt down the perpetrator and
pay for the testing and then turn the situation over to the
pol i ce.

She said that narrowng this down to just non-profits corrected
an indetermnate fiscal note to a zero fiscal note. That neans
that public defenders won't be involved in defending individua
defendants fromclains of many individuals.

SENATOR OGAN said he is still concerned that this carved out
special treatnment for a group of people.

SENATOR THERRIAULT nmade a notion to pass CSHB 23(JUD)
version\U, fromcommttee with individual recommendati ons. There
was no objection and it was so ordered.

1: 56 - 1:57 - at ease

SB 24- SPECI AL _ABSENTEE BALLOTS

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced SB 24 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR LI NCOLN, sponsor of SB 24, said she had another neeting
to attend, but her chief of staff, Sarah Boraio, was avail able
to answer questions. She explained that this was introduced in
the | ast session and nmade it through the system but didn't get

passed. She hopes it wll nake it through this tine so that
people in renote areas will have the opportunity to vote.
2:00 p.m

M5. SARAH BORAIO staff to Senator Lincoln, said that SB 24
offers voters living in a renote area the opportunity to vote
using the 60-day special advance absentee ballot. In current
statute, only voters living, working or traveling outside of the
United States are eligible for that special advance absentee
ball ot. However, distance, terrain and natural conditions have

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2003



prevented voters in renote areas from reaching a community wth
a polling place or from receiving by-mail ballots. The current
absentee ballot is mailed out 14-15 days in advance. The
Division of Elections supports the bill and they already
distribute the 60-day ballots to those out of state. This
| egi sl ati on woul d not inpose any adm nistrative difficulties and
there is a zero fiscal note.

She said there were sone concerns about definitions and she
wanted to clarify that Legislative Legal said the way the
Division of Elections applies their current regulations in
determ ning absentee voters would apply in determning those
eligible for this special advance absentee ballot. One of the
criteria the division uses to identify absentee voters is if the
voter resides in a renote area in Alaska or where distance,
terrain or other natural conditions deny the voter reasonable
access to the polling place. The definition of renote is
inherent in the regulations and in this bill; a renote area is
one where reasonable access to a polling place is denied by
those criteria. A key phrase is "reasonabl e access". Legislative
Legal found that in the past, courts have interpreted that to be
a matter of degree, which depends on the specific facts of the
case, which are usually determned by the division and
identified in their system

SENATOR OGAN said he could see 60 days for soneone on a
sai |l boat, but it seened long for sonmeone in state and asked if
there was any place in state where nail wasn't delivered for 14
days.

M5. BORAIO said right now there is an absentee ballot that goes
out 15 days in advance and there is the 60-day ballot.
Est abl i shing a 30-day ballot m ght add nore over head.

M5. VIRA NI A BREEZE, Legislative Liaison, D vision of Elections,
agreed with Ms. Boraio and said that the division supports the
bill. They do everything they can to make it convenient for
voters. Those in renote areas often have a difficult tine
getting their ballots back in tine.

SENATOR OGAN asked if she had statistics on how many ballots
they get back after the deadline and since they now mail ballots
14 days in advance, what is the longest it takes to get mail in
a renote |l ocation in Al aska.

M5. BREEZE said she couldn't answer that.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2003



SENATOR THERRI AULT said he knows that sonme nmil systens are
notoriously slow, but he didn't know if 60 days was necessary.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he knows sone people that live in renpte
areas and the election season is difficult for them because they
have access only by air. Sonme el ections are schedul ed when their
plane can't be on floats and can't be on wheels either. Unless
there is sonme undue hardship on the division, he would be as
lenient as he could be to nmke sure that people have the
opportunity to participate in elections. He didn't want to
create a special group, but he also wouldn't want to do anything
t hat woul d preclude anyone from voting.

He said that they would bring the bill back up under bills
already heard and provide anyone the opportunity to ask
guestions of the sponsor in the neantine.

HB 46- PRI MARY ELECTI ON BALLOTS

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced HB 46 to be up for consideration.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, sponsor of HB 46, explained that an
item that was at issue during his door-to-door canpaign was
concern about the changes that were nade during |ast session to
our primary balloting process. One has to choose a political
party ballot in order to vote in that primary election. The
concern that was expressed nost often was that people did not
want to choose a party ballot, but there were initiatives on the
ball ot that people wanted to vote on. They were very concerned
that they were being cornered into having to capriciously
declare a preference in order to vote on an issue. He cane up
with an issues-only ballot for Alaska's voters to choose.

Another elenment this bill responds to is folks who have a
religious conviction and cannot declare a party affiliation. One
thing this bill does not do is prejudice any other opinions a
| egi slator mght have regarding our balloting process or the
initiative process. The bill has a zero fiscal note. The
Anerican Cvil Liberties Union and the Republican Party of
Al aska both testified in favor of this bill

2:15 p.m
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if he explained to his constituents

that requesting a particular party ballot is different than
declaring affiliation wwth a party.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2003



REPRESENTATIVE HAWKER replied that he had had sonme very
interesting discussions and was told that it preserves a
person's privacy in not having to make any expression in order
to participate in the balloting process. He felt it was
i ncunmbent upon them to nake the balloting process as open as
possible to people of all beliefs.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if he considered just not allow ng any
initiatives on a primary ballot.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER replied that he had considered that, but
he found a diversity of opinions on that subject and felt that
that would create nore controversy and would detract from the
sinple mssion of his bill

SENATOR OGAN said he didn't think they needed another ballot
printed, but initiatives should be on a general election ballot
only.

Supporting this bill does not - it is not my intention
that it in any way - causes you to prejudice any
opinions you may hold on that subject in particular,
whether we do or do not have referendum neasures,
bal |l ot issues, appearing on a primary ballot. | would
personally be very receptive to discussing with you
that issue as a separate piece of legislation, sir.

TAPE 03-20, SIDE B

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about an initiative only ballot in a
general election.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER replied he doesn't envision this as naking
any changes to the general election balloting.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if the Division of Elections had an opi ni on.

M5. BREEZE said they had no policy position on this issue, but
they would be able to inplenent the bill's | anguage.

CHAIR SEEKINS said one suggestion was to have an additional
ballot in the primary and another to limt these issues to the
general election. He asked which woul d be easier.

V5. BREEZE replied that is a policy call.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 9, 2003



CHAI R SEEKINS asked if either one of them would be cheaper than
t he ot her.

M5. BREEZE replied that she didn’'t know what the costs would be
at this tine.

SENATOR ELLIS told Representative Hawker that he appreciated his
bringing up the issue and that he heard the same concerns. There
were a lot of upset people, especially in the religious
community. He said that this issue was raised by the mnority
and brushed aside during debate on the closed Republican
primry.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER appreciated his observations, but it is
his true desire to have this legislation stand on its own nerits
and not in light of any other contentious issues that my have
happened in previ ous sessions.

SENATOR ELLI'S said he understands Representative Hawker's point,
but they can't divorce thenselves from history. Sone of the sane
menbers here were there then and:

It's undeniable that we are here at this point with

your bill because of what happened previously wth
closing the primary - beyond what the court required,
in nmy opinion. So here we are. |'m just saying you' ve

got to convince people who didn't care about this
concern, the religious folks and the folks who didn't

want to declare - you' ve got to convince those and
many of those sane folks are still here. They're going
to vote on your bill, 1 hope, in the affirmative, but
you' ve got to change their m nds that you're
representing the legitimte interests...l wsh you
| uck.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Ms. Breeze how many tinmes in the |ast
20 years initiatives have shown up on primary ballots.

M5. BREEZE replied hardly at all. "This last one was the first
time it's happened since |I've been wth the division, which is
about seven years."

SENATOR OGAN said he thought this was bad policy and asked if

the statutes were clear on what election an issue can show up on
or do they specifically have to ban it.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 9, 2003



M5. BREEZE responded that it is a mtter of timng. If a
petition is submtted the day the Legislature convenes, it wll
appear on the general election ballot. If it appears at another
time, because of timng, it could appear on the primary el ection
ballot and that's what happened this tinme. Mst people that
submt petitions would prefer to have them on the general
el ection ballot because voter turn out is larger. That didn't
happen wth this particular initiative. She said that the
division was bonbarded with questions from people who didn't
have the chance to vote on a separate ballot because nore than
hal f of the state's voters are not registered with a party.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what the division's official response
was.

M5. BREEZE replied the people were told they would have to
choose a ballot; that was the | aw and the division was foll ow ng
it.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if she clarified that they didn't have
to vote for the party candi date.

MS. BREEZE sai d yes.

SENATOR OGAN said that having to select a ballot is an issue
that is ripe for litigation, based on having to be a nenber of
the party to vote. He understands Senator Therriault's point,
but he didn't think the average public is that sophisticated

Peopl e want to vote on issues and he thought that there m ght be
a little of denying people's perceived right to vote on
sonet hi ng, because they have to pick a party ballot to vote on
an initiative that's on the primary.

M5. BREEZE said that it was not appropriate for her to share her
t houghts and didn't want her answers to be msleading. She
reiterated that they got a lot of phone calls and people asked
if they had to vote a certain way.

SENATOR THERRIAULT said he didn't think there was a
constitutional problem because they didn't bar access to the
bal | ot by having voters select a party.

CHAI R SEEKINS noted there were no further coments and said that
t hey woul d hold the bill

2:32 pom - 2:35 p.m - at ease

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2003



CHAI R SEEKI NS adj ourned the neeting at 2:35 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2003



